
 
  

CITY OF LAWNDALE 
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California 90260 

Phone (310) 973-3200 – www.lawndalecity.org 
 

AGENDA 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, March 1, 2021 - 6:30 p.m. 
Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber 

14717 Burin Avenue 
 

* COVID-19 NOTICE * 
 

How to observe the Meeting:  
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public 
can observe the meeting on YouTube “Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, or Lawndale Community 
Cable Television on Spectrum & Frontier Channel 3. 
 
How to submit Public Comment:  
Members of the public may provide public comment by sending comments to the Clerk by email at 
cityclerk@lawndalecity.org.  Please submit your written comments as early as possible, preferably prior 
to the start of the meeting or if you are unable to email, please call the City Clerk's Office at (310) 973-
3213 by 5:30 p.m. on the date of the meeting. Email comments must identify the Agenda Item Number 
in the subject line of the email.  The public comment period will close once the public comment time for 
the agenda item has concluded. The comments will be entered into the record and provided to the 
Council. All comments should be a maximum of 500 words, which corresponds to approximately 3 
minutes of speaking time.  Please see the Temporary eComment Policy for Public Meetings. 
 
Copies of this Agenda packet may be obtained prior to the meeting outside of the Lawndale City Hall foyer 
or on the City Website.  Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for 
clarification regarding individual agenda items. 
 

This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration) 
 

C. PRESENTATION 
 
1. COVID-19 Victims and Survivors Memorial Day 
 

D. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 
 

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments) 
 

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL 
  

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
mailto:cityclerk@lawndalecity.org
https://www.lawndalecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_16676053/File/Government/Departments/City%20Clerk's%20Office/Agendas%20and%20Minutes/City%20of%20Lawndale%20-%20eComment%20Policy.pdf
https://www.lawndalecity.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=17106541


Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 

 

G. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items 2 through 9, will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember 
removes individual items for further City Council consideration or explanation. 

 
2. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the  

Agenda 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.   

 
3. Amendment to Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code Pertaining to the   

Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) to Reflect Recent 
Changes in State Law 
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1178-21, amending Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code pertaining to the 
Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units to reflect recent changes in State 
Law. 
 

4. Amendment to Chapter 17.50 of the Lawndale Municipal Code Density Bonus    
Provisions for Residential Units to Reflect Recent Changes in State Law   
Recommendation: that the City Council approve the second reading and adopt Ordinance 
No. 1179-21, amending Chapter 17.50 of the Lawndale Municipal Code Density Bonus 
Provisions for Residential Units to Reflect Recent Changes in State Law. 
   

5. Personnel Board Term Extension 2021-2023  
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-008, extending 
the terms of the current Personnel Board members to begin March 1, 2021 and end 
February 28, 2023. 
 

6. Senior Citizen Advisory Committee Term Extension 2021-2013 
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-009, extending 
the terms of the current Senior Citizen Advisory Committee members to begin March 1, 
2021 and end February 28, 2023. 

 
7. Beautification Committee Appointments 

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 of Resolution No. CC-2103- 
010, and (b) adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-010 as amended. 

 
8. Accounts Payable Register 

Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2103-007, authorizing 
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $185,258.49. 

 
9. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – February 16, 2021 

Recommendation: that the City Council approve. 
  



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

 

H. ADMINISTRATION 
 
10. Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission Appointments  

Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 and 2 of Resolution No. CC-
2103-011, and (b) adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-011 as amended. 
 

11. Planning Commission Appointments 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the Mayor’s appointments by 
directing staff to insert the appointees’ names in Section 1 and 2 of Resolution No. CC-
2103-012, and (b) adopt the Resolution No. CC-2103-012 as amended. 

 
12. Southern California Association of Governments Annual General Assembly  

Appointment of Voting Delegate and Alternate- May 6, 2021 
Recommendation: that the City Council determine (a) who will attend the Southern 
California Association of Governments (SCAG) annual business meeting (b) designate 
the City’s voting delegate (c) designate the City’s voting alternate (if desired) and (d) 
direct the City Clerk’s Office to formally confirm the delegate and alternate selection and 
forward that information to SCAG.  
  

13. Cancellation of City Special Events Program for March and April 2021 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) approve the cancellation of the following 
events that take place in March and/or April of each year; Youth in Government Day, 
Easter Egg Hunt and Youth Day Parade (b) approve the modifications to the annual 
Spring Cleanup Week program.  
 

14. Quarterly Budget Update- Fiscal Year 2020-2021 
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) receive and file report and (b) approve all 
recommended budget adjustments as listed in the staff report. 

 
I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 

 
J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

15. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 
March 15, 2021 in the Lawndale City Hall council chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California. 

 
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 
all respects.  If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond 
what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner.  Please 
contact the City Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular 
needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible.  Please advise us at that time if you will need 
accommodations to attend or participate in meetings on a regular basis. 



Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
March 1, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

 

 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the Agenda 
for the regular meeting of the City Council to be held on March 1, 2021 was posted not less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Matthew Ceballos, Assistant City Clerk 



1



2



3





ORDINANCE NO. 1178-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS IN 
TITLE 17, ZONING, OF THE LAWNDALE MUNICIPAL CODE 
REGARDING ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS AND FINDING 
OF EXEMPTION FROM CEQA 

 
SUMMARY:  This ordinance amends the regulations in the City’s Zoning Code for 
accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units consistent with current state 
law. 

 
 WHEREAS, in light of the statewide shortage of housing, the State laws on accessory dwelling 
units have been repeatedly expanded to give property owners more latitude to add new housing units; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of California signed Assembly Bill 3182 (AB 3182) and 
Senate Bill 1030 (SB 1030), which became effective on January 1, 2021 to, among other things, make 
certain clarifying changes state laws related to Accessory Dwelling Units (“ADUs”) and Junior 
Accessory Dwelling Units (“JADUs”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to revise the City’s Zoning Code regarding ADUs 
JADUs to make the City’s code more user friendly and compliant with the Bills; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission considered this ordinance at a properly noticed public 
hearing on January 27, 2021 and recommended adoption by the City Council; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly given as required by law, held a public hearing 
on February 16, 2021 in the City Hall council chamber located at 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, 
California, to consider this matter. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Lawndale hereby makes the following findings: 
 

A. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated fully herein. 
B. The changes to the Zoning Code of the City of Lawndale made by this Ordinance are 

consistent with the General Plan of the City of Lawndale. 
 

 SECTION 2. Section 17.48.057 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to read, 
in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics): 
 

“17.48.057 Junior accessory dwelling units  
 
A JADU may be located on a residential or mixed use lot zoned for lot that has been 
developed with one single-family residence only. Lots with multiple detached single-



family dwellings are not eligible to have JADUs. use Each JADU shall comply with the 
following development standards: 

 
A.  A JADU shall not exceed five hundred (500) square feet, and must be constructed within the 
existing walls of the primary single-family dwelling unit.  
 
B.  A JADU shall include a separate exterior entrance from the main entrance to the primary 
dwelling unit.  
 
C.  A JADU shall include at least an efficiency kitchen which shall include all of the following: 
i) a cooking facility with appliances; and ii) a food preparation counter and storage cabinets that 
are of reasonable size in relation to the size of the JADU.  
 
D.  A JADU may share sanitation facilities with the existing primary dwelling.  
 
E.  A JADU shall require owner-occupancy in the single-family residence in which the JADU 
will be permitted unless the owner is another governmental agency, land trust, or housing 
organization.   
 
F.  Before permit issuance, the City shall be provided with a copy of the recorded deed restriction, 
which shall run with the land, and which shall be on file with using the City’s form, to 
memorialize the: (i) restrictions on the size and attributes of the JADU; (ii) prohibition on the 
sale of the JADU separate from the sale of the primary residence; (iii) if the JADU is  rented, the 
unit shall not be rented for a period of less than 30 days; (iv) requirement that either the JADU 
or primary residence be owner occupied unless the owner is a governmental agency, land trust, 
or housing corporation; and (v) including a statement that the deed restriction may be enforced 
against future purchasers.  
 
G.  A JADU shall comply with all applicable building and safety codes, including but not limited 
to those describe in Title 15 of the Lawndale Municipal Code. 
 
H.  A JADU will be allowed on the same lot with a new ADU, provided the following criteria 
are met:  
 

a.  The ADU is fully detached and the JADU is within the proposed space of a single-
family dwelling or existing space of a single-family dwelling; and  
b.  The ADU does not exceed a total floor area of 800 square feet and a height limitation 
of 16 feet. 
 

I. No additional parking shall be required for construction of a JADU.  
 

J. Permit Requirements.   



 
Junior accessory dwelling units will be permitted ministerially, subject to compliance with this 
section, within 60 days of a complete application if there is an existing single-family or 
multifamily dwelling on the lot. If the permit application to create a junior accessory dwelling 
unit is submitted with a permit application to create a new single-family dwelling on the lot, the 
City may delay acting on the permit application for the junior accessory dwelling unit until it acts 
on the permit application to create the new single-family dwelling, but in such event the 
application to create the junior accessory dwelling unit will be considered without discretionary 
review or hearing.   
 
K.  Fees.  A junior accessory dwelling unit will not be considered to be a new residential use for 
purposes of calculating connection fees or capacity charges for utilities, including water and 
sewer service, unless the accessory dwelling unit was constructed with a new single-family 
dwelling.  This subdivision shall not be interpreted to prohibit the requirement of an inspection, 
including the imposition of a fee for that inspection, to determine if the junior accessory dwelling 
unit complies with applicable building standards.” 

 
SECTION 3. Section 17.48.110, subsection J, of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to 

read, in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics):  
 
“J.  An accessory dwelling unit and/or  junior accessory dwelling unit that complies with the 
requirements of Sections 17.48.056 and 17.48.057, as applicable, of this code.”  
 
SECTION 4. This Ordinance is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 

(“CEQA”) pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21080.17 and CEQA Guidelines section 
15282(h). These sections statutorily exempt the adoption of an ordinance implementing provisions of 
Government Code Section 65852.1 and 65852.2. This ordinance would allow for the construction of 
accessory dwelling units and junior accessory dwelling units in residential zones consistent with and as 
required by state law.  Additionally, this ordinance is exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b)(3) of 
the CEQA Guidelines, which provides that CEQA only applies to projects that have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment. Where, as here, it can be seen with certainty that there 
is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity 
is not subject to CEQA. 
 
 SECTION 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent jurisdiction, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance, and each and every section, subsection, 
sentence, clause and phrase thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether 
any portion of the Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
 SECTION 6. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance, and 
shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the proceedings of the City 
Council at which the same is passed and adopted. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect thirty 
(30) days after its final passage and adoption, and within fifteen (15) days after its final passage, the City 
Clerk shall cause it to be posted and published in a newspaper of general circulation in the manner 
required by law. 



 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council duly introduced the foregoing Ordinance No. 1178-21 at its regular meeting held on the 16th 
day of February, 2021, and duly approved and adopted said ordinance at its regular meeting held on 
the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor       
Pat Kearny, Mayor Pro Tem      
Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman      
Bernadette Suarez      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
______________________________    ______________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk       Date 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 



4





ORDINANCE NO. 1179-21 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA  

AMENDING LAWNDALE MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 17.50 
TO UPDATE DENSITY BONUS STANDARDS FOR  

CONSISTENCY WITH STATE LAW 
 

SUMMARY: This ordinance updates standards for awarding density bonuses for 
residential developments consistent with changes in state law effective January 1, 
2021. 

 
 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 65915(a) requires cities to adopt an ordinance that 
specifies how compliance with this density bonus requirements will be implemented; and  
 

WHEREAS, the state legislature recently passed legislation, Assembly Bill 2345, 
amending Government Code section 65915, to update state density bonus requirements effective 
January 1, 2021, including increasing the maximum density bonus for qualifying projects to fifty 
percent (50%) from thirty-five percent (35%); and  

 
WHEREAS, the City now desires to amend Lawndale Municipal Code (“LMC”) Chapter 

17.50 to ensure compliance with current requirements in state density bonus law; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City further desires to amend LMC Chapter 17.50 to make clarifying 

updates to the City’s density bonus requirements to ensure those requirements are implemented 
consistent with state law; and  
 

WHEREAS, at a properly noticed public hearing held at a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission of the City on January 27, 2021, the Planning Commission considered this issue and 
adopted Resolution No. 21-02 recommending that the City Council adopt this Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after notice duly given as required by law, held a public 

hearing on February 16, 2021 in the City Hall council chamber located at 14717 Burin Avenue, 
Lawndale, California, to consider the Planning Commission’s recommendation on this matter as 
set forth in its Resolution No. 21-02. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, 

CALIFORNIA, DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council of the City of Lawndale makes the following findings: 
 

A. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated fully herein. 
 
B. The changes to the City’s Municipal Code made by this Ordinance are consistent 

with the General Plan of the City of Lawndale. 
 



SECTION 2. The definition of “Development standard” set forth in Section 17.50.020 
of the Lawndale Municipal Code shall be amended to read as follows: 

““Development standard” shall have the same meaning as provided in Section 65915(o) 
of the Government Code.”    

SECTION 3.  Section 17.50.020 of the Lawndale Municipal Code is amended to add the 
following definition in alphabetical order:  

““Located within one-half mile of a major transit stop” shall have the same meaning as 
provided in Government Code Section 65915.” 

SECTION 4.  Section 17.50.030 of the Lawndale Municipal Code shall be amended to 
read, in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics):  

“17.50.030 Eligibility requirements for density bonuses. 
    A.  Eligible Housing Development Projects. Upon written request to the city, an 
applicant for a housing development is eligible for a density bonus in the amount stated 
below, provided that the applicant agrees to construct the housing development in 
accordance with one of the following criteria and satisfies the other requirements of this 
chapter: 
    1.   Very Low Income Units.  Developments with five percent of the total dwelling units 
(excluding units added by the density bonus) designated for very low income households 
are entitled to a density bonus of twenty percent over the maximum residential density. 
    2.   Low Income Units.  Developments with ten percent of the total dwelling units 
(excluding units added by the density bonus) designated for lower income households are 
entitled to a density bonus of twenty percent over the maximum residential density. 
    3.   Moderate Income Units. Developments with ten percent of the total dwelling units 
(excluding units added by the density bonus) designated for moderate income households 
are entitled to a density bonus of five percent over the maximum residential density, 
provided that the development is a common interest development and provided that all 
units in the developer are offered to the public for purchase. 

4. One Hundred Percent Lower Income Or/ Moderate Income Units.  Developments 
with at least eighty percent of all units in the development, including total units, and 
density bonus units but exclusive of a manager's unit or units, designated for lower income 
households, andwith all other units (up to twenty percent of the total units) designated for 
moderate income households, (up to twenty percent of the total units), are entitled to a 
density bonus of eighty percent of the number of units designated for lower income 
households (excluding units added by the density bonus).  However, if the housing 
development is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop the city will not impose 
any maximum controls on density. 

5. Senior Citizen Housing Developments. Senior citizen housing developments are 
entitled to a density bonus of twenty percent of the number of senior housing units 
provided. 

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?topic=17-17_50-17_50_030


    6.   Foster, Veteran and Homeless Housing. Developments with ten percent of the total 
dwelling units (excluding any units permitted by the density bonus) designed for 
transitional foster youth, disabled veterans, or homeless persons are entitled to a density 
bonus of twenty percent of the number of the transitional units giving rise to a density 
bonus. 

7. Lower income student housing.  Student housing developments with twenty percent 
of the total units (excluding any units permitted by the density bonus) designated for lower 
income students are entitled to a density bonus of thirty-five percent of the student housing 
units, provided that the development meets the following requirements: 

a. All units in the student housing development will be used exclusively for 
undergraduate, graduate, or professional students enrolled full time at an institution of 
higher education accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges or the 
Accrediting Commission for Community and Junior Colleges. In order to be eligible under 
this subsection (A)(7), the developer shall, as a condition of receiving a certificate of 
occupancy, provide evidence to the city that the developer has entered into an operating 
agreement or master lease with one or more institutions of higher education for the 
institution or institutions to occupy all units of the student housing development with 
students from that institution or institutions. An operating agreement or master lease 
entered into pursuant to this subsection (A)(7) is not violated or breached if, in any 
subsequent year, there are not sufficient students enrolled in an institution of higher 
education to fill all units in the student housing development. 

b. The eligibility of a lower income student under this subsection (A)(7)(b) shall be 
verified by an affidavit, award letter, or letter of eligibility provided by the institution of 
higher education that the student is enrolled in, as described in subsection (A)(7)(a), or by 
the California Student Aid Commission that the student receives or is eligible for financial 
aid, including an institutional grant or fee waiver, from the college or university, the 
California Student Aid Commission, or the federal government. 

c. The development will provide priority for the applicable affordable units for lower 
income students experiencing homelessness. A homeless service provider or institution of 
higher education that has knowledge of a person's homeless status may verify a person's 
status as homeless for purposes of this subsection (A)(7)(c). 
For purposes of calculating a density bonus granted pursuant to this subsection (A)(7), the 
term “unit” means one rental bed and its pro rata share of associated common area facilities.  
    B.   Higher Density Bonus for Greater Contribution of Affordable Units. Upon written 
request to the city, an applicant for a housing development that is eligible for a density 
bonus based upon the contribution of affordable units, may receive a higher amount of 
density bonus if the percentage of very low, lower, and moderate income housing units 
exceeds the base percentage established in subsections (A)(1), (A)(2), or (A)(3) of this 
section, as follows: 
    1.   Very low income units—For each one percent increase above five percent in 
affordable units for very low income households, the density bonus shall be increased by 
two and one-half percent as follows, up to a maximum of thirty-five fifty percent, as 
follows: 



Percentage Very Low Income Units Percentage Density Bonus 

5 20 

6 22.5 

7 25 

8 27.5 

9 30 

10 32.5 

11 35 

12 38.75 

13 42.5 

14 46.25 

15 50   
    2.   Lower income units—For each one percent increase above ten percent in affordable 
units for lower income households, the density bonus shall be increased by one and one-
half percentas follows, up to a maximum of thirty-fivefifty percent, as follows: 

Percentage Low Income Units Percentage Density Bonus 

10 20 

11 21.5 

12 23 

13 24.5 

14 26 

15 27.5 

16 29 

17 30.5 

18 32 

19 33.5 

20 35 

21 38.75 

22 42.5 

23 46.25 

24 50 



 
    3.   Moderate income ownership units—For each one percent increase above ten percent 
in affordable units offered for sale to moderate income households, the density bonus shall 
be increased by one percentas follows, up to a maximum of thirty-fivefifty percent, as 
follows: 
  

 Percentage Moderate Income Units Percentage Density Bonus 

10 5 

11 6 

12 7 

13 8 

14 9 

15 10 

16 11 

17 12 

18 13 

19 14 

20 15 

21 16 

22 17 

23 18 

24 19 

25 20 

26 21 

27 22 

28 23 

29 24 

30 25 

31 26 

32 27 

33 28 

34 29 



 Percentage Moderate Income Units Percentage Density Bonus 

35 30 

36 31 

37 32 

38 33 

39 34 

40 35 

41 38.75 

42 42.5 

43 46.25 

44 50   
 

   C.  Continued Affordability. Affordable units that qualified a housing development for a 
density bonus shall remain affordable as follows: 
    1.  Requirements. 

 a. Very low income and lower income rental dwelling units shall remain at an 
affordable rent to the designated income group for a minimum of fifty-five years, or for a 
longer period of time if required by any construction or mortgage financing assistance 
program, mortgage insurance program, or rental subsidy program applicable to the 
dwelling units.   

b. Housing developments described in subsection (A)(4) shall be subject to a recorded 
affordability restriction for a minimum of fifty-five years, or for a longer period of time if 
required by any construction or mortgage financing assistance program, mortgage 
insurance program, or rental subsidy program applicable to the dwelling units.  The rent 
for at least twenty percent of the units in the development shall be set at an affordable rent 
and the rent for the remaining units in the development shall be set at an amount consistent 
with the maximum rent levels for a housing development that receives an allocation of state 
or federal low-income housing tax credits from the California Tax Credit Allocation 
Committee. 
    c.   The foster care, veteran and homeless units described in subsection (A)(6) shall be 
subject to a recorded affordability restriction of fifty-five years and shall be provided at the 
same affordability level as very low income units. 

d. The lower income student housing units described in subsection (A)(7) shall be 
subject to a recorded affordability restriction of fifty-five years.  The rent provided in the 
applicable units of the development for lower income students shall be calculated at thirty 
percent of sixty-five percent of the area median income for a single-room occupancy unit 
type. 



e.   Replacement units per Section 17.50.035 that are rental dwelling units shall be 
subject to a recorded affordability restriction for at least fifty-five years. 
    f.   Replacement units per Section 17.50.035 that are for-sale units, shall be subject to 
the provisions of subsection (C)(2). 
    2.   An applicant shall agree to, and the city shall ensure, that the initial occupant of all 
for-sale units that qualified the applicant for a density bonus are persons and families of 
very low, low, or moderate income and that the units are offered at an affordable housing 
cost. The city shall enforce an equity-sharing agreement, unless it is in conflict with the 
requirements of another public funding source or law. The following shall apply to the 
equity-sharing agreement: 
    a.   Upon resale, the seller of the unit shall retain the value of any improvements, the 
down payment, and the seller’s proportionate share of appreciation. The city shall recapture 
any initial subsidy and its proportionate share of appreciation, which shall then be used 
within five years for any of the purposes described in Section 33334.2(e) of the Health and 
Safety Code that promote homeownership. 
    b.   For purposes of this subsection (C)(2), the city’s initial subsidy shall be equal to the 
fair market value of the home at the time of initial sale minus the initial sale price to the 
moderate income household, plus the amount of any down payment assistance or mortgage 
assistance. If upon resale the market value is lower than the initial market value, then the 
value at the time of the resale shall be used as the initial market value. 
    c.   For purposes of this subsection (C)(2), the city’s proportionate share of appreciation 
shall be equal to the ratio of the initial subsidy to the fair market value of the home at the 
time of initial sale. 
    3.   The resale price of any owner-occupied affordable unit shall not exceed the 
affordable ownership costs with the following exceptions: (a) customary closing costs and 
costs of sale; or (b) costs of real estate commissions paid by the seller if a licensed real 
estate salesperson is employed; or (c) consideration of permanent capital improvements 
installed by the seller. 
    4.   These provisions for continued affordability shall be a provision of the density bonus 
housing agreement required by Section 17.50.130. 
    D.   Specification of Basis for Density Bonus. Each applicant who requests a density 
bonus pursuant to this section, shall elect which category in subsection (A) the density 
bonus award will be based on. Each housing development is entitled to only one density 
bonus.  Density bonuses from more than one category may not be combined.”  
SECTION 5.  Section 17.50.070 of the Lawndale Municipal Code shall be amended to 

read, in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics):  
“17.50.070 General provisions governing density bonus calculations. 
    A.  For the purposes of any provisions in this chapter, an applicant may elect to accept a 
lesser percentage of density bonus than that to which the housing development is eligible. 
    B.   When calculating the number of permitted density bonus units, any calculations 
resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next larger whole number. 

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.035&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.035&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=heasaf
https://qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=heasaf
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.130&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?topic=17-17_50-17_50_070


    C.   For the purpose of calculating a density bonus, the dwelling units shall be on 
contiguous sites that are the subject of one development application, but do not have to be 
based upon individual subdivision maps or parcels. The density bonus shall be permitted 
in geographic areas of the housing development other than the areas where the affordable 
units are located. 
    D.  For the purposes of this chapter, the term “total units” or “total dwelling units” in a 
housing development does not include those units added by any density bonus. 
    E.   Regardless of the number or extent of affordable or qualifying units, senior housing, 
land dedication, child care facilities or other qualifications for a density bonus provided in 
any single housing development, no housing development may be entitled to a total density 
bonus of more than thirty-five percent, except as provided in Section 17.50.030(A)(4). 
   

TABLE 1: Density Bonus Summary  
A density bonus may be selected from only one category, except that bonuses for land 

donation may be combined with others, up to a maximum of 35% (except as provided in 
Section 17.50.030(A)(4)), and an additional sq. ft. bonus may be granted for a child care 

facility.  

Qualifying Element 
of Development 

Project 

Minimum 
Percentage or 
Requirement 

Bonus 
Granted  

Additional Bonus for 
Each 1% Increase in 

Affordable Units  

% Affordable 
Units Required for 

Maximum 35% 
Bonus  

Affordable Housing  

 Very low income 
units 5%  20%  

2.5% up to 35%, 
then 3.75% up to 

50% 
1115%  

 Lower income 
units 10%  20%  

1.5% up to 35%, 
then 3.75% up to 

50% 
2024%  

 Moderate income 
units (ownership 

units only)  
10%  5%  1% up to 35%, then 

3.75% up to 50% 4044%  

Lower/Moderate 
income units 

At least 80% 
lower; remaining 
units moderate 

80% of 
number of 

lower income 
units(1) 

—  —  

Senior citizen 
housing  

Qualified senior 
citizen housing 
development  

20% of the 
number of 

senior citizen 
housing units  

—  —  



Foster, disabled 
veteran and 

homeless housing  
10%  

20% of the 
number of 
qualifying 

units  

—  —  

Lower income 
student housing 20% 

35% of the 
student 

housing units 

 
—  

 
—  

Land donation for 
very low income 

housing  

Land donated can 
accommodate 

number of very 
low income units 
equal to 10% of 
units in project 

15%  1%  

Land donated can 
accommodate 

number of very 
low income units 
equal to 30% of 
units in project 

Child care facility  

Development 
qualifies for 

density bonus 
under Section 

17.50.030; facility 
meets 

requirements in 
Section 17.50.060.  

Equal to or 
greater than 

sq. ft. in child 
care facility (2)  

—  —  

Condominium Conversion 

 Lower income 
units 15%  25% (3)  —  

N/A 
Maximum density 

bonus is 25% 

 Low/Moderate 
income units 33%  25% (3)  —  

N/A 
Maximum density 

bonus is 25% 

Notes:  
(1) If the housing development is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop the 
city will not impose any maximum density requirement. 

(2) Or an additional concession or incentive that contributes significantly to the economic 
feasibility of the construction of the childcare facility, at the city’s option. 

(3) Or an incentive of equal value, at the city's option.”  
 

SECTION 6.  Section 17.50.080 of the Lawndale Municipal Code shall be amended to 
read, in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics):  

“17.50.080 Incentives and concessions. 

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?topic=17-17_50-17_50_080


    A.  Definition of a Qualified Concession or Incentive. An applicant for a density bonus 
pursuant to Section 17.50.030 may also submit to the city a written proposal for specific 
incentives or concessions as provided in this section. The applicant may also request a 
meeting with the city’s city manager or designee to discuss such proposal. For purposes of 
this chapter, concessions and incentives include any of the following: 
    1.   Reductions in site development standards or modifications of zoning requirements 
or architectural design requirements that exceed the minimum building standards approved 
by the California Building Standards Commission as provided in Part 2.5 (commencing 
with Section 18901) of Division 13 of the Health and Safety Code. These include, without 
limitation, a reduction in setback and square footage requirements and in the ratio of 
vehicular parking spaces that would otherwise be required. In order to qualify as a 
“concession or incentive,” the city must be able to find, based on substantial evidence, that 
the requested reductions in site development standards result in identifiable and actual cost 
reductions to provide for affordable housing costs or for rents for the targeted units to be 
set as specified in Section 17.50.030(C); or 
    2.   Approval of mixed use zoning in conjunction with the housing development if 
commercial, office, industrial, or other land uses will reduce the cost of the housing 
development and if the commercial, office, industrial or other land uses are compatible 
with the housing development and the existing or planned development in the area where 
the proposed housing development will be located; or 
    3.   Other regulatory incentives or concessions proposed by the applicant or the city, so 
long as the city can find, based on substantial evidence, that such proposals result in 
identifiable and actual cost reductions to provide for affordable housing costs or for rents 
for the targeted units to be set as specified in Section 17.50.030(C). 
    B.   Findings to Deny Concession or Incentive. The city shall grant the concession or 
incentive requested by the applicant unless the city makes a written finding, based upon 
substantial evidence, of any of the following: 
    1.   The concession or incentive does not result in identifiable and actual cost reductions 
to provide for affordable housing costs or for affordable rents for the targeted units to be 
set as specified in Section 17.50.030(C); or 
    2.   The concession or incentive would have a specific adverse impact upon public health 
and safety or the physical environment or on any real property that is listed in the California 
Register of Historical Resources and for which there is no feasible method to satisfactorily 
mitigate or avoid the specific adverse impact without rendering the development 
unaffordable to low income and moderate-income households; or 
    3.   The concession or incentive would be contrary to state or federal law. 
    C.   Number of Concessions or Incentives. If all other provisions of this section are 
satisfied, an applicant will be eligible for the following number of incentives and 
concessions: 
    1.   One incentive or concession for housing developments where at least five percent of 
the total units are for very low income households, at least ten percent of the total units are 
for lower income households, or at least ten percent of the total units in a common interest 
development are sold to moderate income households; 

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=heasaf
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6


    2.   Two incentives or concessions for housing developments where at least ten percent 
of the total units are for very low income households, at least twentyseventeen percent of 
the total units are for lower income households, or at least twenty percent of the total units 
in a common interest development are sold to moderate income households; or 
    3.   Three incentives or concessions for housing developments where at least fifteen 
percent of the total units are for very low income households, at least thirtytwenty-four 
percent of the total units are for lower income households, or at least thirty 
percent of the total units in a common interest development are sold to moderate income 
households. 

4. Four incentives or concessions for projects meeting the criteria of Section 
17.50.030(A)(4). If the project is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop the 
applicant shall also receive a height increase of up to three additional stories, or 33 feet.  
  

TABLE 2: Incentives and Concessions Summary  
Affordable Units 

% 
Very 
Low 

Income 
Units 

% 
Lower 
Income 
Units 

% 
Moderate 
Income 
Units 

Sold in 
CID 

% 
Lower/Mod 

Income 
Units 

Number of 
Incentives/Concessions 

5% 10% 10% _ 1 
10% 2017% 20% _ 2 
15% 3024% 30% _ 3 

_ _ _ 

At least 
80% lower 

income; 
remaining 

units 
moderate 
income 

4 

Other Qualifying Project Element(1) 
Child care facility 1(2) 

Commercial Housing with Partnered Housing Agreement See Section 17.50.065 
Condominium Conversion 
33% of total units provided to persons or families of low or 
moderate income, or 15% of total units provided to lower 
income households 

1(3) 

(1) No incentives or concessions are available for land donation.  



(2) Or a density bonus equal to or greater than the square feet in child care facility, at the 
city’s option. 
(3) Or a density bonus of twenty-five percent, at the city’s option.  
    D.  This section does not limit or require the provision of direct financial incentives for 
the housing development, including the provision of publicly-owned land, by the city or 
the waiver of fees or dedication requirements. Nor does any provision of this section 
require the city to grant an incentive or concession found to have a specific adverse impact. 
    E.   The granting of a concession or incentive shall not require, or be interpreted, in and 
of itself, to require a general plan amendment, local coastal plan amendment, zoning 
change, study, or other discretionary approval. For purposes of this chapter, “study” does 
not include reasonable documentation to establish eligibility for the concession or incentive 
or to demonstrate that the proposal meets the definition of an “incentive or concession.” 
Except as provided in Sections 17.50.080(C) and 17.50.090(A), the granting of a density 
bonus shall not require or be interpreted to require the waiver of a local ordinance or 
provisions of a local ordinance unrelated to development standards.”  
 
SECTION 7.  Section 17.50.090 of the Lawndale Municipal Code shall be amended to 

read, in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics):  
“17.50.090 Waivers and modifications of development standards. 
    A.  Except as provided in subsection (E), applicants granted a density bonus pursuant to 
Section 17.50.030 may, by written proposal, seek a waiver, modification or reduction of 
development standards that would otherwise have the effect of physically precluding the 
construction of the housing development at the densities or with the concessions or 
incentives permitted pursuant to this chapter. The applicant may also request a meeting 
with the city to discuss such request for waivers and modifications. 
    B.   To obtain a waiver or modification of development standards, the applicant shall 
show that the development standards will have the effect of physically precluding the 
construction of a housing development meeting the criteria of Section 17.50.030(A) at the 
densities or with the concessions or incentives permitted by this chapter. 
    C.   A proposal for the waiver or reduction of development standards pursuant to this 
section shall neither reduce nor increase the number of incentives or concessions to which 
the applicant is entitled pursuant to Section 17.50.080. 
    D.  The city may deny a request for any waiver, modification or reduction of 
development standards if the waiver, modification or reduction would have a specific 
adverse impact and there be no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the 
specific adverse impact.  

E. Notwithstanding subsection (A), a housing development that receives a waiver 
from any maximum controls on density pursuant to Section 17.50.030(A)(4) shall notonly 
be eligible for, and shall not receive, a waiver or reduction of development standards 
pursuant to this Section, other than as expresslyas provided in Section 17.50.030(A)(4) and 
17.50.080(C)(4)., unless the city agrees to additional waivers or reductions of 
development standards.” 

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.080&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.090&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?topic=17-17_50-17_50_090
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.080&confidence=6


SECTION 8.  Section 17.50.100 of the Lawndale Municipal Code shall be amended to 
read, in its entirety, as follows (deletions marked in strikethrough, additions in bold and italics):  

“17.50.100 Parking incentives. 
    A.  Except as provided in subsections (B) and, (C) or (D) hereof, upon the written 
request of the applicant for a housing development meeting the criteria for a density bonus 
under Section 17.50.030, the city shall not require a vehicular parking ratio, inclusive of 
parking for persons with a disability and guests, that exceeds the following: 
    1.   Zero to one-bedroom units: one on-site parking space. 
    2.   Two to three-bedroom units: twoone and one-half on-site parking spaces. 
    3.   Four and more bedroom units: two and one-half parking spaces. 
    B.   1. Notwithstanding subsection (A), if a development includes (1): (i) at least 20 
percent low-income units for housing developments meeting the maximum 
percentagecriteria of low incomesection 17.50.030(A)(2) or at least 11 percent very low 
income units provided for in Section 17.50.030(B)for housing developments meeting the 
criteria of section 17.50.030(A)(1) and (B)(2), and (2)(ii) is located within one-half mile 
of a major transit stop and there is unobstructed access to the major transit stop from the 
development, then, upon the request of the developer, the city shall not impose a vehicular 
parking ratio, inclusive of parking for persons with a disability and guests, that exceeds 
0.5 spaces per bedroom.unit.  
2.  For purposes of this section 17.50.100, a development shall have unobstructed access 
to athe major transit stop if a resident is able to access the major transit stop without 
encountering natural or constructed impediments. For purposes of this subsection (B), 
“natural or constructed impediments” includes, but is not limited to, freeways, rivers, 
mountains, and bodies of water, but does not include residential structures, shopping 
centers, parking lots, or rails used for transit. 
    C.   Notwithstanding subsection (A), if a development consists solely of rental units, 
exclusive of manager units, with an affordable housing cost to lower income families, then, 
upon the request of the developer, the city shall only impose vehicular parking ratios 
consistent with standards if the development meets either of the following criteria: 
    1.   If theThe development is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop and 
there is unobstructed access to the major transit stop from the development, the ratio shall 
not exceed 0.5 spaces per unit. 
    2.   If theThe development is a for-rent housing development for individuals who are 
sixty-two years of age or older that complies with Sections 51.2 and 51.3 of the Civil Code, 
and the ratio shall not exceed 0.5 spaces per unit. The development shall havehas either 
paratransit service or unobstructed access, within one-half mile, to fixed bus route service 
that operates at least eight times per day. 
    3D.   Notwithstanding subsection (D)subsections (A) and (G), if the development 
consists solely of rental units, exclusive of a manger’s unit or units, with an affordable 
housing cost to lower income families, as provided in Section 50052.5 of the Health and 
Safety Code, and the development is either a special needs housing development, as 
defined in Section 51312 of the Health and Safety Code, or a supportive housing 

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?topic=17-17_50-17_50_100
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6
https://qcode.us/codes/othercode.php?state=ca&code=civ


development as defined in Section 50675.14 of the Health and Safety Code, then, upon 
the request of the developer, the city shall not impose any minimum parking requirement, 
provided. A development that if the development is a special needs housing development, 
the  development shall have either paratransit service or unobstructed access, within one-
half mile, to fixed bus route service that operates at least eight times per day. 
        D.E. If the total number of parking spaces required for a development is other than 
a whole number, the number shall be rounded up to the next whole number. For 
purposes of this subsection, a development may provide on-site parking through tandem 
parking or uncovered parking, but not through on-street parking. 
   F. This section 17.50.100 shall apply to a development that meets the requirements 
of  subsection (C) of this section, but only at the request of the applicant. 
   G.   Notwithstanding subsections (B), (C)(1), and (C)(2), if the city or an independent 
consultant has conducted an area wide or jurisdiction wide parking study in the last seven 
years prior to any density bonus application, then the city may impose a higher vehicular 
parking ratio not to exceed the ratio described in subsection (A), based upon substantial 
evidence found in the parking study, that includes, but is not limited to, an analysis of 
parking availability, differing levels of transit access, walkability access to transit services, 
the potential for shared parking, the effect of parking requirements on the cost of market-
rate and subsidized developments, and the lower rates of car ownership for low income and 
very low income individuals, including seniors and special needs individuals. The city shall 
bear the costs of any such study. The city shall make findings, based on the parking study 
completed in conformity with this subsection, supporting the need for the higher parking 
ratio. 
       E.   Guest parking and handicapped parking shall be included within the maximum 
number of spaces that may be required. If the total number of parking spaces required for 
a housing development is other than a whole number, the number shall be rounded up to 
the next whole number. For purposes of this section, a housing development may provide 
on-site parking through tandem parking or uncovered parking, but not through on-street 
parking. This section shall apply to a development that meets the requirements of 
Section 17.50.030, but only at the request of the applicant.  
FH.  A request pursuant to this Section shall not reduce or increase the number of incentives 
or concessions to which the applicant is otherwise entitled.” 

 
 
 SECTION 9. The City Council hereby finds, in the exercise of its independent judgment 
and analysis, that this ordinance is exempt from CEQA under Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which provides that CEQA only applies to projects that have the potential for causing 
a significant effect on the environment. Where, as here, it can be seen with certainty that there is 
no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 
activity is not subject to CEQA.  More specifically, this Ordinance merely implements the 
requirements of state law, allowing developers to seek a density bonus pursuant to Government 
Code Section 65915.   

  

https://qcode.us/codes/lawndale/view.php?cite=section_17.50.030&confidence=6


 SECTION 10. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is 
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of any competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 
The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, and each and every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof not declared invalid or unconstitutional 
without regard to whether any portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
 SECTION 11. The City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this ordinance, 
and shall make a minute of the passage and adoption thereof in the records of and the proceedings 
of the City Council at which the same is passed and adopted. This ordinance shall be in full force 
and effect thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption, and within fifteen (15) days after 
its final passage, the City Clerk shall cause it to be posted and published in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the manner required by law. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 

 
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 
  



ATTEST: 

State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale ) 

I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the 
City Council duly introduced the foregoing Ordinance No. 1179-21 at its regular meeting held on 
the 16th day of February, 2021, and duly approved and adopted said ordinance at its regular 
meeting held on the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
Pat Kearny, Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman 
Bernadette Suarez 
Sirley Cuevas 

______________ 
Date 

______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 



5





RESOLUTION NO. CC-2103-008 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 

EXTENDING THE TERMS OF MEMBERS OF THE 
PERSONNEL BOARD 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 2.40.610 of the Lawndale Municipal Code establishes the Personnel Board 
of the City of Lawndale, California; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 18, 2019, with the adoption of Resolution No. CC-1903-015, the City 
Council extended the terms of the then-current Personnel Board members to end February 28, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Personnel Board members serve a term beginning March 1 of each odd-numbered 
year and ending on February 28 of the succeeding odd-numbered year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Personnel Board meets infrequently and has not held a meeting since 2008. 
  

 WHEREAS, the City has not received any applications for appointment or reappointment to the 
Personnel Board from qualified individuals; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to maintain the membership of the current board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The following Personnel Board member’s terms are extended by the Mayor with 
the approval of the City Council:  
 

John Clark, Marcela Pak, George Pelzl, Mercedes Santacruz, and Golden Thrower 
 
 SECTION 2. All members of the Personnel Board shall serve a term of office to commence on 
March 1, 2021 and expire on February 28, 2023, unless earlier removed.  
  
 SECTION 3. Pursuant to Council Policy No. 93-09, each member of the Personnel Board shall 
serve without compensation but may receive reimbursement for necessary travel and other expenses 
incurred in the performance of an official duty, when such expenditures are first authorized by the City 
Council. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 



ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City Council of 
the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2103-008 at a regular 
meeting of said Council held on the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 



6





RESOLUTION NO. CC-2103-009 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 

EXTENDING THE TERMS OF MEMBERS OF THE 
SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council established, by Resolution No. CC-1407-032, the 12-member Senior 
Citizen Advisory Committee (“Committee”) of the City of Lawndale; and 
 

WHEREAS, with the adoption of Resolution No. CC-1903-013, Resolution No. CC-1906-029, 
Resolution No. CC-1911-054 the City Council appointed eleven Committee members to a term that ends 
on February 28, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Committee has not met during the COVID-19 pandemic and has not held a 
meeting since January 22, 2020; and 

  
 WHEREAS, the City has not received any applications for appointment or reappointment to the 
Committee from qualified individuals; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council desire to maintain the membership of the current 
Committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, Committee members serve a term beginning March 1 of each odd-numbered year 
and ending on February 28 of the succeeding odd-numbered year. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The following Committee member’s terms are extended by the Mayor with the 
approval of the City Council:  
 

Oscar Bernal, Ruthi Davis, Teresa Garcia, Doris Hofmann, Adriana Heidman, Harlika O'Balles, 
Maureen Williams-Grimes, Larry Stouch, Moses P. Dennis, and Edna McQuirter 

 
 SECTION 2. All members of the Committee shall serve a term of office to commence on March 
1, 2021 and expire on February 28, 2023, unless earlier removed. 
  
 SECTION 3. The members of the Senior Citizen Advisory Committee shall serve without 
compensation, unless the City Council, by resolution or otherwise, provides, but may receive 
reimbursement for necessary travel and other expenses incurred in the performance of an official duty, 
when such expenditures are first authorized by the City Council. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 
 
 
 



       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City Council of 
the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2103-009 at a regular 
meeting of said Council held on the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 



7





RESOLUTION NO. CC-2103-010 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA,  

CONFIRMING APPOINTMENTS TO  
THE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council established, by Resolution No. CC-0103-26, the 7-member 
Beautification Committee (“Committee”) of the City of Lawndale; and 
 

WHEREAS, with the adoption of Resolution No. CC-1903-014, Resolution No. CC-1911-
056, Resolution No. CC-2001-005 the City Council appointed the current seven Committee 
members to a term that ends on February 28, 2021; and 

 
 WHEREAS, all committee members are appointed by the Mayor, with the approval of the 
City Council, for a term commencing on March 1 of each odd numbered year and terminating on 
February 28 of the succeeding odd numbered year; and  
 
 WHEREAS, eligible residents have submitted applications for appointment and 
reappointment to the Committee; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has reappointed five (5) of the applicants on the Committee and the 
City Council wishes to ratify the appointments. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE DOES 
HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council approves the Mayor’s reappointment of __________, to 
the Beautification Committee. 
 
 SECTION 2. All members of the Committee shall serve a term of office to commence on 
March 1, 2021 and expire on February 28, 2023, unless earlier removed. 
 
 SECTION 3. Pursuant to Council Policy No. 93-09, a newly appointed committee 
member must submit to a background check upon appointment. 
 
 SECTION 4. Members of the Beautification Committee shall serve without 
compensation, unless the City Council, by resolution or otherwise, provides, but may receive 
reimbursement for necessary travel and other expenses incurred in the performance of an official 
duty, when such expenditures are first authorized by the City Council. 
  



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City 
Council of the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2103-
010 at a regular meeting of said Council held on the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 











8













MINUTES OF THE 
LAWNDALE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

    February 16, 2021 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Mayor Pullen-Miles called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall council chamber,
14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.

Councilmembers Present:  Mayor Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney,
Councilmember Bernadette Suarez, Councilmember Rhonda 
Hofmann-Gorman, Councilmember Sirley Cuevas   

Other Participants: City Clerk Erica Harbison, City Manager Kevin M. Chun, City 
Attorney Gregory M. Murphy, Los Angeles County Sheriff's 
Department Lieutenant Christopher Lio, Community Services 
Director Mike Estes, Assistant to the City Manager/Human 
Resources Director Raylette Felton, Municipal Services Director 
Michael Reyes, Finance Director Marla Pendleton, Community 
Development Director Sean Moore, Assistant City Clerk Matthew 
Ceballos, Public Works Director Julian Lee 

B. CEREMONIALS

Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman led the flag salute.

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

Lieutenant Christopher Lio summarized the recent law enforcement activities.

D. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

No comments provided.

E. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

No comments were provided by the Council.

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the
Agenda
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

2. Updating City Council Policy No. 77-04 (Records and Information Management),
Adding Authorization to Destroy Paper after Imaging/Trustworthy Electronic
Records Compliance
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC- 2102-006, Updating
City Council Policy No. 77-04 (Records and Information Management), Adding
Authorization to Destroy Paper after Imaging/Trustworthy Electronic Records
Compliance.

9



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 16, 2021 
Page 2 

3. Conditional Approval of 2021 Fireworks Permits
Recommendation: that the City Council award seven (7) conditional 2021 Fireworks
permits to Christian Heritage Church; Foursquare Church of Lawndale, Lawndale
Chamber of Commerce, Lawndale Little League, Lawndale Rotary Club, Lawndale
Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission, and Wesleyan Church of Lawndale.

4. Federally Funded Employment and Job Training – South Bay Workforce
Investment Board Activities Summary
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report.

5. Accounts Payable Register
Recommendation: that the City Council adopt Resolution No. CC-2102-005, authorizing
the payment of certain claims and demands in the amount of $96,912.75.

6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting – February 1, 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

7. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Special Meeting – February 10, 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council approve.

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to approve the consent calendar was seconded by 
Councilmember Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS

8. Amendment to Title 17 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, Pertaining to the
Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU), to Reflect Recent
Changes in State Law
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a public hearing; (b) determine that
Ordinance No. 1178-21 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; and (c) introduce
and approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1178-21, amending Lawndale Municipal
Code Title 17 regarding Accessory Dwelling Units (ADU) development standards to
reflect recent changes in state law.

Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the Amendment to Title 17 of the 
Lawndale Municipal Code, Pertaining to the Development Standards for Accessory Dwelling 
Units (ADU), to Reflect Recent Changes in State Law 

Mayor Pullen-Miles opened and closed the public hearing immediately at 6:40 p.m., there being 
no one to testify. 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to determine that Ordinance No. 1178-21 is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) 
of the CEQA Guidelines; and introduce and approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 
1178-21, amending Lawndale Municipal Code Title 17 regarding Accessory Dwelling Units 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 16, 2021 
Page 3 

(ADU) development standards to reflect recent changes in state law, was seconded by 
Councilmember Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

9. Amendment to Chapter 17.50 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, Density Bonus
Provisions for Residential Units, to Reflect Recent Changes in State Law
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) conduct a public hearing; (b) determine that
Ordinance No. 1179-21 is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; and (c) introduce
and approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 1179-21, amending Chapter 17.50 of the
Lawndale Municipal Code, Density Bonus Provisions for Residential Units, to reflect
recent changes in state law.

Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the Amendment to Chapter 17.50 of 
the Lawndale Municipal Code, Density Bonus Provisions for Residential Units, to Reflect Recent 
Changes in State Law. 

Mayor Pro Tem Pat Kearney inquired about the dimensions of the reduced parking space. 

Community Development Director Sean Moore responded it will be a parking space size of 10 x 
10. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles opened hearing at 6:47 p.m. and closed the public hearing at 6:48 p.m., there 
being no one to testify. 

A motion by Councilmember Suarez to determine that Ordinance No. 1179-21 is exempt 
from the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3) 
of the CEQA Guidelines; and introduce and approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 
1179-21, amending Chapter 17.50 of the Lawndale Municipal Code, Density Bonus 
Provisions for Residential Units, to reflect recent changes in state law, was seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Kearney and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

H. ADMINISTRATION

10. Project Development Update
Recommendation: that the City Council receive and file the report.

City Manager Kevin M. Chun introduced the project development update as a new item for 
Council review every 6 months.  

Community Development Director Sean Moore reported on the Project Development Update. 

Mayor Pro Tem Kearney inquired if Lawndale will have bank or credit union businesses in the 
near future.  

Community Development Director Sean Moore responded he is currently working with a 
potential credit union applicant interested in some sites. Mayor Pullen-Miles added that the 
financial institutions have also been interested in placing ATM or kiosk machines in Lawndale 
but he’s hopeful they will settle in a building for walk-in services. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 16, 2021 
Page 4 

Mayor Pullen-Miles praised the new businesses and development in Lawndale. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles inquired if the sign on top of the new business building, Axis Supply, will 
be utilized. Community Development Director Sean Moore responded it may not be removed, it 
is leased by the owner and is legal non-conforming but the tenants are allowed to use it.  

The Council reached a unanimous consensus to receive and file the report. 

11. Award Contract for Solid Waste Consulting Services
Recommendation: that the City Council (a) award the contract for the Solid Waste
Consulting Services to HF&H Consultants, LLC in the amount of $261,000 for the 29
month service period from February 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023; (b) authorize an
increase in AB939 contract services appropriations for Fiscal Year 2020-21 in the amount
of $44,289.

Public Works Director Julian Lee reported on the Award Contract for Solid Waste Consulting   
            Services. 

A motion by Mayor Pro Tem Kearney to award the contract for the Solid Waste Consulting 
Services to HF&H Consultants, LLC in the amount of $261,000 for the 29 month service 
period from February 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023 and authorize an increase in AB939 
contract services appropriations for Fiscal Year 2020-21 in the amount of $44,289, was 
seconded by Councilmember Cuevas and carried by a vote of 5-0. 

12. Illegal Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021
Recommendation: that the City Council review the proposed Illegal Fireworks
Suppression Plan for 2021, and provide direction on the strategies presented in this staff
report.

City Manager Kevin M. Chun introduced item number 12 as the response to the challenges 
Lawndale has faced with the use of illegal fireworks. 

Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes reported on Illegal Fireworks Suppression Plan for 
2021. 

Councilmember Cuevas inquired if the proposed “Progressive Penalties” will include the 
violators from the previous year. Municipal Services Director Michael Reyes responded it will 
be difficult and problematic to retroactively apply the penalties as it is newly introduced.  

City Manager Kevin M. Chun added criminal citations were issued in the past and administrative 
citations would be new in the city and applied from this point forward.  

Mayor Pro Tem Kearney suggested deployment of Special Assignment Officer’s to be reduced 
to a total of 4 weeks and inquired how long and what the cost would be to set up the 
Administrative Citations option. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 16, 2021 
Page 5 

Municipal Services Director Reyes responded it would not cost the City anything and alter the 
Deputy’s shifts to whatever was most beneficial. 

A dialogue ensued between Mayor Pro Tem Kearney and Municipal Services Director Reyes 
regarding the advertising the use of unmarked, undercover deputy cars. 

Mayor Pullen-Miles spoke in support of the proposed plans in hopes it will diminish the use 
illegal fireworks.  

Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman commended Municipal Services Director Reyes for 
the report and spoke in favor of the “Progressive Penalties” to 5 years.  

Mayor Pullen-Miles requested staff to look further into the fireworks businesses, in the City, to 
contribute to the additional costs. City Manager responded he will attempt to do so for this year 
if not for the following year 

Public Comment 

Randal Abram, Lawndale Resident, spoke in favor of the suppression plan and compared the 
proposed notions to previous years. Mr. Abram added the city should turn to the fireworks 
distributors for a percent of the profits to apply to the increased costs.  

Councilmember Suarez and City Manager Chun recommended to place this item on the June 
City Council Agenda.  

The proposed Illegal Fireworks Suppression Plan for 2021 was approved with unanimous 
consensus of the Council, without objection, and would be formalized at a subsequent 
meeting. 

I. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

City Manager Kevin Chun spoke of the COVID-19 vaccine availability and advised that information
regarding the vaccine was on the City’s website (vaccinatelacounty.com and myturn.ca.gov). Mr.
Chun went on speaking of the General Plan update that is underway and encourages everyone’s
participation to help Lawndale develop and grow in the future.

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS

13. Mayor/City Councilmembers Report of Attendance at Meetings and/or Events

Councilmember Suarez attended the first workshop of the General Plan update and also attended 
the South Bay Cities Council of Governments steering committee meeting.  

Councilmember Sirley Cuevas attended the California Contract Cities Association Virtual 
Sacramento Legislative Tour and attended the General Plan update workshop.  Ms. Cuevas 
inquired how Lawndale Seniors may participate in the General Plan update if they don’t have 
access to the internet. Community Development Director Moore responded that mailers can be 
provided or that would set up teleconference to expand engagement. 



Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 16, 2021 
Page 6 

Councilmember Rhonda Hofmann-Gorman attended a meeting with Sherriff Captain Allen, to 
discuss issues and activities in Lawndale.  

Mayor Pro Tem Kearney attended the Sherriff’s Liability Trust Oversight Committee where 
one case was settled and several are pending.  

Mayor Pullen-Miles mentioned COVID-19 tests are being administered at Lawndale Urgent 
Care located at 16818 Hawthorne Blvd. Mr. Pullen-Miles attended the L.A. County Sanitation 
District Board of Directors meeting and a California Mayors Coalition meeting. 

K. CLOSED SESSION

At 7:01 p.m. the City Council entered into closed session.

14. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation
The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section
54956.9(d) (1), to confer with legal counsel regarding litigation to which the City is a
party.  The title of such litigation is as follows: Lawndale vs. Metropolitan Transportation
Authority; Case Number 20STCP02875; L.A. County Superior Court.

At 8:37 p.m. the City Council entered back into open session. 

City Attorney Gregory M. Murphy reported that the City Council met in Closed Session to 
discuss the one item listed on the Closed Session agenda. The City Council gave unanimous 
direction to negotiate out a mutually acceptable settlement agreement. 

L. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to conduct, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:37 p.m.

_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Erica Harbison, City Clerk 

Approved: 03/01/2021 



10





RESOLUTION NO. CC-2103-011 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

CONFIRMING APPOINTMENTS TO 
THE PARKS, RECREATION AND SOCIAL SERVICES COMMISSION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 2.40, the Parks, Recreation and 
Social Services Commission consists of five members who have the power, except as otherwise provided 
by law, to:  (a)  advise the city council in matters pertaining to social and leisure programs for the city. 
The commission may make recommendations to the city council on priorities for the development and 
provision of social and leisure programs for the residents of Lawndale and the acquisition and operation 
of related facilities; (b) be responsible for assisting the city council and community services department 
in identifying and assessing areas of social and leisure needs, and for cooperating with other individuals 
and community agencies engaged in serving human needs to identify service gaps and areas of 
duplication within the community; (c) encourage the maximum availability of social and leisure 
opportunities within the community through appropriate scheduling of facilities and through the 
promotion of citizen participation in the development and operation of nontax-supported programs; and 
(d) independently act to raise funds, the commission shall be authorized to spend such funds on social 
and leisure items and events within the city as more fully described in Chapter 3.10 of the code; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2019, with the adoption of Resolution No. 1902-008, the City 
Council appointed 5 members of the Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission to terms that 
would end February 28, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Parks, Recreation and Social Services commissioners serve a term beginning March 
1 of each odd-numbered year and ending on February 28 of the succeeding odd-numbered year; and 

 
 WHEREAS, eligible residents have submitted applications for appointment and reappointment 
to the Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the applications; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has reappointed 2 of the applicants and appointed 3 of the applicants to 
the Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission and the City Council wishes to ratify the 
appointments. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council confirms the Mayor’s reappointment of _________, to the Parks, 
Recreation and Social Services Commission. 
 
 SECTION 2. The City Council confirms the Mayor’s appointment of _________, to the Parks, 
Recreation and Social Services Commission. 
 



 SECTION 3. All members of the Parks, Recreation and Social Services Commission shall serve 
a term of office to commence on March 1, 2021 and expire on February 28, 2023 unless earlier removed. 
 
 SECTION 4. Pursuant to the California Political Reform Act, all newly appointed Parks, 
Recreation and Social Services commissioners are required to file with the City Clerk a Statement of 
Economic Interests a) within 30 days of assuming office and b) all commissioners must file a Statement 
of Economic Interest annually while in office. 
 
 SECTION 5. Pursuant to Council Policy No. 93-09, each newly appointed commissioner must 
submit to a background check upon appointment. 
 
 SECTION 6. Pursuant to Council Policy No. 93-09, each commissioner will receive a stipend of 
$50 per meeting attended, not to exceed $100 per month, and may receive reimbursement for necessary 
travel and other expenses incurred in the performance of an official duty, when such expenditures are 
first authorized by the City Council. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City Council of 
the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2103-011 at a regular 
meeting of said Council held on the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 













11





RESOLUTION NO. CC-2103-012 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 

CONFIRMING APPOINTMENTS TO 
THE LAWNDALE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Lawndale Municipal Code Chapter 2.40, the Lawndale Planning 
Commission consists of five members who have the power, except as otherwise provided by law, to:  (a) 
recommend to the proper office plans for the regulation of the future growth, development and 
beautification of the city; (b) recommend to the proper office of the city plans consistent with the future 
growth and development of the city; and (c) do such other things as shall be necessary to carry out the 
provisions of this code and the provisions of the Conservation and Planning Act of the state; and 
  
 WHEREAS, on February 19, 2019, with the adoption of Resolution No. CC-1902-006, the City 
Council appointed 5 members of the Lawndale Planning Commission to terms that would end February 
28, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2019, with the adoption of Resolution No. CC-1903-016, the City 
Council rescinded the appointment of 1 member of the Planning Commission effective immediately; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 15, 2019, with the adoption of Resolution No. CC-1904-022, the City 

Council appointed 1 member of the Lawndale Planning Commission to a term that would end February 
28, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, Planning Commissioners serve a term beginning March 1 of each odd-numbered 
year and ending on February 28 of the succeeding odd-numbered year; and 

 
 WHEREAS, eligible residents have submitted applications for appointment and reappointment 
to the Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the applications; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor has reappointed 2 of the applicants and appointed 3 applicants to fill the 
Planning Commission and the City Council wishes to ratify the appointments. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA, 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Council approves the Mayor’s reappointment of __________, to the 
Planning Commission. 
 
 SECTION 2. The City Council approves the Mayor’s appointment of __________, to the Planning 
Commission. 
 



 SECTION 3. All members of the Planning Commission shall serve a term of office to 
commence on March 1, 2021 and expire on February 28, 2023, unless earlier removed. 
 
 SECTION 4. Pursuant to the California Political Reform Act, all newly appointed planning 
commissioners are required to file with the city clerk a Statement of Economic Interests a) within 30 
days of assuming office and b) annually while in office. 
 
 SECTION 5. Pursuant to Council Policy No. 93-09, a newly appointed commissioner must 
submit to a background check upon appointment. 
 
 SECTION 6. Pursuant to Council Policy No. 93-09, each commissioner will receive a stipend of 
$50 per meeting attended, not to exceed $100 per month, and may receive reimbursement for necessary 
travel and other expenses incurred in the performance of an official duty, when such expenditures are 
first authorized by the City Council. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of March, 2021. 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 
 
  



ATTEST: 
 
State of California  ) 
County of Los Angeles ) SS 
City of Lawndale  ) 
 
I, Erica Harbison, City Clerk of the City of Lawndale, California, do hereby certify that the City Council of 
the City of Lawndale duly approved and adopted the foregoing Resolution No. CC-2103-012 at a regular 
meeting of said Council held on the 1st day of March, 2021, by the following roll call vote: 
 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor      
Pat Kearney, Mayor Pro Tem      
Bernadette Suarez      
Rhonda Hofmann Gorman      
Sirley Cuevas      

 
 
_______________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 













12



13







14













15


	21-03-01 reg.agn
	01. Proclamation Covid-19 Memorial Day
	02. Motion to read by title only
	03. Ordinance - ADU Update
	04. Ordinance - Density Bonus Update
	05. Personnel Board 2021-2023 Term Extension
	06. SCAC 2021-2023 Term Extension
	07. Beautification Committee 2021-2023 Appointment
	08. Warrants
	09. 21-02-16 reg.min
	10. PRSS Commission 2021-2023 Appointment
	11. Planning Commission 2021-2023  Appointments
	12. SCAG Delegate and Alternate
	13. Cancellation of City Special Events Programs - March and April 2021
	14. Quarterly Budget Update
	15. Report of attendance

	Button1: 


